
As prepared by E4m 

 

 

 
CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF TEHKUMMAH 

Council Meeting Agenda 
January 13, 2026 

6:00 P.M. 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Traditional Land Acknowledgement 

3. Recital of the Municipal Mission and Vision Statements 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
Resolution No.: 2026-001 
Moved by and seconded by  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the agenda of the Regular Meeting of Tuesday January 13, 2026, be adopted as 
prepared and circulated by E4m. 

 
5. Declarations of Disqualifying Interest (Pecuniary) 

6. Mayor’s Address - None 
 

7. Approval of the Minutes of the Most Recent Meeting(s) 
a. Special Meetings November 13, and 20, 2025 

Resolution No.: 2026-002 
Moved by  and seconded by  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the minutes of the Special Meetings of November 13, and 20, 2025, be 
adopted as circulated. 

8. Delegations/Presentations - None 
 

9. Council Direction from the Previous Meeting(s) 
a. Patrol Yard/Sand Dome Lease   
b. 2024 Bank Reconciliations 
c. Request to Purchase Property – S. Williamson 
d. Public Works Sale of Surplus Equipment etc. 
e. 2023 Audit 
f. Concession 2 Bridge 
g. Facebook Page 
h. Information Session 
i. Court Application under the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act 

 
10. Legislative Matters 

a. Council Working Session   
i. South Baymouth Water/Wastewater System – Discussion with OCWA 

on operational matters including ten (10) year Financial Plan, capital 
needs, etc. 

ii. Level of Service – Recreation: Marina Operations 
 



As prepared by E4m 

 

 

b. Consent Agenda (includes items of correspondence not requiring administrative 
reports/action, committee reports not requiring any action by Council – matters that are for 
information purposes only). 
(No Items for the Consent Agenda) 

c. Resolution/Bylaws (None) 
d. Public Hearings: Planning/Zoning Matters (None) 
e. Committee/Local Board Reports (None) 

 
11. Administrative Matters 

a. New Business/Reports from Officers/Employees on Various Issues (including reports from 
departments which require Council approval) 

i. Fire Chief’s Report December 2025 
Resolution No.: 2026-003 
Moved by:   Seconded by:  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Fire Chief’s report for 
December 2025 is hereby received and authorizes the pump repair and ladder 
testing and directs the costs of this work to be reflected in the 2026 budget. 
 

ii. Multi-Year Accessibility Plan 2026-2031 (MYAP) 
Resolution No.: 2026-004 
Moved by:   Seconded by:  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT that the 2026-2031 Multi-Year 
Accessibility Plan is hereby adopted. 
 

iii. Calling of Special Meetings in February 2026 
Resolution No.: 2026-005 
Moved by         and seconded by  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council does hereby call a Special Meeting on February 10, 
2026, at 6:00 p.m. and directs the Interim Clerk to prepare and post the agenda for each 
meeting forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting. 

 
a. Financial Update/Statement/Quarterly Variance Report (None) 
b. Update on Capital Projects (None) 

12. Leadership Issues 
a. Update to Strategic Plan (None) 
b. Five-Year Financial Plan (including Asset Management Plan) (None) 
c. New Policy (None) 
d. Notice of Motion (None) 

13. Closed Session  
Resolution No.: 2026-006 
Moved by   and seconded by   
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby 
move into Closed session at ______ p.m. in accordance with section 239(2)(b), (d), (e) and (f) of the 
Municipal Act, 2001, and Section 3.3 of the Township’s Procedure By-law 2019-011, to: 

a) Consider employee wages and workload realignment; and 
b) receive correspondence from, and provide direction to, legal counsel regarding the Court 

Application under the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act concerning Mayor Deforge. 
 

  



As prepared by E4m 

 

 

Resolution No.: 2026-007 
Moved by   and seconded by   
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby 
move back into open session at _______ p.m. and report that ________________________ 

 
14. Confirmation of Proceedings 

a. Confirmatory Bylaw 2026-01 
Resolution No.: 2026-008 
Moved by   and seconded by   
BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-Law 2026-01 being a bylaw to confirm proceedings of Council at their 
Meeting of January 13, 2026, be read and adopted. 

 
15. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 

Note: Alternate formats and communication supports are available upon request. 



As prepared by E4m 

 

 

 
CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF TEHKUMMAH 

Special Council Meeting Minutes 
November 13, 2025 

 
PRESENT:        ABSENT 
Mayor John Deforge       
Councillor Lorie Leeson 
Councillor Mike McKenzie 
Councillor Perry Chatwell 
Councillor Steve Wood 
Peggy Young-Lovelace, E4m 

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Deforge called the meeting to order at 6:05 pm. 
 

2. Appoint Clerk Pro Tempore 
Resolution No.: 2025-196 
Moved by Councillor Wood and seconded by Councillor McKenzie 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby appoint 
Peggy Young-Lovelace as Clerk Pro Tempore for the purposes of this Special meeting November 13, 2025 
Carried   
   

3. Approval of Agenda 
Resolution No.: 2025-197 
Moved by Councillor Chatwell and seconded by Councillor Leeson 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the agenda of the Special Meeting of Tuesday November 13, 2025, be adopted as 
prepared by E4m. 
Carried  
  

4. Declarations of Disqualifying Interest (Pecuniary) 
None were declared. 

5. Special Business 

a) Closed Session  
Resolution No.: 2025-198 
Moved by Councillor Wood and seconded by Councillor Chatwell 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby 
move into Closed Session at 6:08 pm in accordance with section 239(2)(b),(d),(e) and (f) of the 
Municipal Act, 2001, and section 3.3 of the Township’s Procedure By-law 2019-011, for the 
following purposes: 

 
• Dealing with the failure of the Mayor to carry out direction of Council (Personal matters 

about an identifiable individual – s. 239(2)(b), receiving of advice subject to solicitor/client 
privilege – s. 239(2)(f)). 

 
• A workplace complaint against the Mayor and Acting Clerk/Administrator (Personal matters 

about an identifiable individual – s. 239(2)(b), labour relations or employee negotiation – s. 
239(2)(d): litigation or potential litigation – s. 239(2)(e); and receiving of advice subject to 
solicitor/client privilege – s. 239(2)(f)).   



As prepared by E4m 

 

 

Carried  
 
  

Return to Open Session 
Resolution No.: 2025-199 
Moved by Councillor Wood and seconded by Councillor Chatwell 
BE IT RESOLVED Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby move 
back into open session at 8:29 pm. and report that Council considered action to be taken with 
respect to the Mayor and a workplace investigation.  
Carried  

 
6. Confirmation of Proceedings 

a. Confirmatory Bylaw 2025-23 
Resolution No.: 2025-200 
Moved by Councillor Leeson and seconded by Councillor Chatwell 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-Law 2025-23 being a bylaw to confirm proceedings of Council at their 
Special Meeting of November 13, 2025, be read and adopted. 
Carried  
 

7. Adjournment 
The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:33 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________   _________________________________ 
Mayor        Meeting Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Alternate formats and communication supports are available upon request. 



As prepared by E4m 

 

 

 
CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF TEHKUMMAH 

Special Council Meeting Minutes 
November 20, 2025 

 
 
PRESENT:       ABSENT: 

 Councillor Lorie Leeson    Mayor John Deforge  
Councillor Mike McKenzie 
Councillor Perry Chatwell 
Councillor Steve Wood 
Peggy Young-Lovelace, E4m  
 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

Deputy Mayor Wood called the meeting to order at 6:11pm. 
 

2. Appoint Clerk Pro Tempore 
Resolution No.: 2025-201 
Moved by Councillor McKenzie and seconded by Councillor Leeson 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby appoint 
Peggy Young-Lovelace as Clerk Pro Tempore for the purposes of this Special meeting November 20, 2025 
Carried 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

Resolution No.: 2025-202 
Moved by Councillor Chatwell and seconded by Councillor McKenzie 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the agenda of the Special Meeting of Tuesday November 20, 2025, be adopted as 
prepared by E4m. 
Carried   

 
4. Declarations of Disqualifying Interest (Pecuniary) 

None were declared. 

5. Special Business 

a) Closed Session  
Resolution No.: 2025-206 
Moved by Councillor Leeson and seconded by Councillor Chatwell 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby 
move into Closed Session at 6:13pm in accordance with section 239(2)(b), (d), (e) and (f) of the 
Municipal Act, 2001, and section 3.3 of the Township’s Procedure By-law 2019-011, for the 
following purposes: 

          
• Acting Clerk Administrator (Personal matters about an identifiable individual – s. 239(2)(b), 

receiving of advice subject to solicitor/client privilege – s. 239(2)(f)). 
• False advertising of Municipal Jobs by the Mayor and Acting Clerk/Administrator (Personal 

matters about an identifiable individual – s. 239(2)(b) receiving of advice subject to 
solicitor/client privilege – s. 239(2)(f)).   

• Workplace complaints against the Mayor (Personal matters about an identifiable individual – 



As prepared by E4m 

 

 

s. 239(2)(b), labour relations or employee negotiations – s. 239(2)(d); litigation or potential 
litigation – s. 239(2)(e); and receiving of advice subject to solicitor/client privilege – s. 
239(2)(f)). 

 
 Carried 

 
 
Return to Open Session 
Resolution No.: 2025-207 
Moved by Councillor Leeson and seconded by Councillor McKenzie 
BE IT RESOLVED Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah does hereby move 
back into open session at 8:00 pm. and report that Direction was given to Deputy Mayor Wood 
and E4m regarding the Acting Clerk Administrator position, amending unauthorized job postings 
and workplace complaints against the Mayor. 
Carried 

 
Resolutions Coming out of Closed Session: 

 
I. By-law to appoint an Interim Municipal Clerk 

Bylaw 2025-24 
Resolution No.: 2025-203 
Moved by Councillor McKenzie and seconded by Councillor Chatwell 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-Law 2025-24 being a bylaw to appoint an Interim Municipal 
Clerk be read and adopted at the Special meeting of November 20, 2025. 
Carried 

 
II. By-law to appoint an Interim Treasurer 

By-law 2025-25 
Resolution No.: 2025-204 
Moved by Councillor McKenzie and seconded by Councillor Leeson 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-Law 2025-25, being a bylaw to appoint an Interim Treasurer, be 
read and adopted at the Special Meeting of November 20, 2025. 
Carried 

 
III. By-law to establish a Bank Signing Authority 

Bylaw 2025-26 
Resolution No.: 2025-205 
Moved by Councillor Chatwell and seconded by Councillor McKenzie 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-Law 2025-26 being a bylaw to establish Bank Signing Authority 
be read and adopted at the Special meeting of November 20th, 2025. 
Carried 

 
  



As prepared by E4m 

 

 

 
 
 
6. Confirmation of Proceedings 

a. Confirmatory Bylaw 2025-27 
Resolution No.: 2025-208 
Moved by Councillor McKenzie and seconded by Councillor Leeson 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-Law 2025-24 being a bylaw to confirm proceedings of Council at their 
Special Meeting of November 20, 2025, be read and adopted. 
Carried  
 

7. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned by Deputy Mayor Wood at 8:05 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________   _________________________________ 
Mayor        Meeting Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Alternate formats and communication supports are available upon request. 



TEHKUMMAH  
Fire Department 
Established 1977 

456 Hwy542A Tehkummah, Ont. P0P 2C0 
              Chief – Jeff Wilson                                                                      Captain – Maurice Sagle 
              Captain- Andrew Wood                  (705) 859-3287                  Training Officer- Jacob Wilson 

TehkummahFD@outlook.com 
 

Chief’s Report    
December 2025 

 
   Weekly practice nights are continuing. The next month and a half of practices will be dedicated to completing 
the online portion of the Exterior Attack Program. Once that is completed the crew will be ready for the time OFC 
has a practical session scheduled for the island somewhere.  I suspect the first course will be in Gore Bay with 
Burpee/Mills and Robinson taking up the majority of the spots. We can hopefully get a couple of our members 
into that course. The one after that will likely be in Mindemoya or LC again. I needed to order text books for this 
course. I apologize that I didn’t get council approval to order the books. They are needed before the start of the 
course which is January 12th. The order also includes the text books needed for my Officer I course. Cost of the 
order is around $1,500.  
   The Emergency Management compliance submission has been completed. Hopefully it results in our being 
compliant for 2026. Dave did an excellent job with the Tabletop exercise. I was not able to get the day off work 
because I used all my holidays/days off for the training in Trenton and Walkerton.  
   I was asked to research Fire Department remuneration policies. Below is a link to one that somewhat aligns 
with our department.  One big difference in this policy which I seen in quite a few of the policies I seen when I 
was researching is that they are providing $1,000 to each crew member that becomes certified. This is a one-time 
incentive to help motivate people to put in the extra effort and do the work in order to become certified. These 
people are becoming less and less volunteer and more and more like part time employees with the demands that 
are placed on them now a days. It is a huge commitment to put in the time and effort at home to do the online 
training and then to give up two to possibly 4 weekends in order to do the practical training and testing in order 
to be certified. Some of these members will be very tired and sore for days and days after the practical training so 
I don’t believe it is fair to expect them to “volunteer” all their time and discomfort. We need to let them know 
that we value and appreciate their commitment to serve their community in any way they are needed with the Fire 
Department. 
 
https://rmofpiney.mb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Fire-Fighter-Remuneration-Policy-2024.pdf 
 
As mentioned in a previous report the repairs to the fire trucks, that was identified during the annual pump testing 
was put on hold due to the belief that we were over budget in 2025. Carrier our repair company has called 
requesting to schedule the repairs for January 13th, 2026. We share travel cost with other departments on the island 
since they travel from Brantford, ON to do these repairs. This travel also includes our annual ladder testing. Our 
ladders are presently not in compliance because the testing was not done in 2025. I believe we need to proceed 
with these repairs and it would cost us considerably more for them to come later where we would pay all of the 
travel cost ourselves if we delay. Cost of the pump repairs $2,307.77 plus travel and cost of the ladder testing. 
Parts from 1200 Degrees for the repairs because they had to come from an E-One Dealer $1,768.00. These cost 
will be included in the Fire Department 2026 budget.  
 
Jeff Wilson  
Fire Chief/CEMC for Tehkummah Township 

mailto:TehkummahFD@outlook.com
https://rmofpiney.mb.ca/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Fire-Fighter-Remuneration-Policy-2024.pdf




 

HCM MULTI-YEAR ACCESSIBILITY PLAN  PAGE 1 OF 7 
 

Tehkummah Multi-Year Accessibility Plan  
(2026–2031) 

 

 

Introduction 

The Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah (“the Municipality”) is pleased to 
present its 2026–2031 Multi-Year Accessibility Plan, an update to its ongoing 
commitment to accessibility under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 
2005 (AODA). 

This Plan reaffirms the Municipality’s strong commitment to accessibility, inclusion, and 
full compliance with Ontario’s accessibility legislation. It sets out the Municipality’s 
actions and priorities for identifying, removing, and preventing barriers that affect people 
with disabilities, ensuring that everyone can access and benefit from our programs, 
services, and facilities. 

As part of this commitment, the Township is embedding accessibility into its Asset 
Management Plan and incorporating accessibility considerations into future updates to 
municipal plans, policies, and service delivery. By planning ahead and integrating 
accessibility into how we manage, maintain, and invest in municipal assets, we are 
working toward a more inclusive and barrier-free community over time. 

Our goal is to ensure that all people—regardless of age or ability—can live, work, and 
visit Tehkummah with dignity and independence, in keeping with the principles of 
equality, integration, and respect for every individual. 

Statement of Organizational Commitment 

The Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah is committed to providing equal access 
and opportunity for all people and ensuring that its services, programs, and facilities are 
accessible, inclusive, and welcoming. 

The Municipality will: 

• Treat all individuals in a way that allows them to maintain dignity, independence, 
and equality of opportunity; 

• Identify, remove, and prevent barriers that hinder accessibility in the workplace, in 
public facilities, and in the delivery of municipal services; 



 

HCM MULTI-YEAR ACCESSIBILITY PLAN  PAGE 2 OF 7 
 

• Ensure that accessibility considerations are integrated into all policies, planning, 
procurement, and infrastructure decisions; and 

• Meet or exceed the requirements of Ontario’s accessibility laws, including the 
AODA, the Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (IASR), the Ontario 
Building Code, and the Ontario Human Rights Code. 

Accessibility is recognized as a fundamental component of good governance and 
community sustainability. The Municipality is committed to continuous improvement 
across all areas under its responsibility, including buildings, parks, trails, and public 
spaces. 

The Township of Tehkummah is committed to accessibility for everyone who lives in or 
visits our community. Our goal is to ensure people with disabilities can access our 
services, information, and facilities with dignity, independence, and equal opportunity. 

We work proactively to identify, remove, and prevent barriers, and we meet all 
requirements under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA). We also 
involve people with disabilities in the development of our accessibility plan to ensure it 
reflects real needs and experiences. 

We welcome feedback from the public at any time. Input from residents, visitors, and 
community groups helps us better understand accessibility challenges and continue 
removing barriers in our facilities, services, and programs. 

 

Legislative Framework 

This Plan is guided by the following key legislative requirements: 

• Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001 (ODA) 

• Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA) 

• Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (IASR) 

• Ontario Human Rights Code 

• Ontario Building Code (Accessibility Standards) 

 

Barrier Identification 

A barrier is anything that prevents a person with a disability from fully participating in 
society. The Municipality recognizes five primary types of barriers: 



 

HCM MULTI-YEAR ACCESSIBILITY PLAN  PAGE 3 OF 7 
 

• Physical and Architectural Barriers: e.g., stairs without ramps, narrow doorways, 
or uneven surfaces. 

• Informational and Communication Barriers: e.g., printed materials not available in 
accessible formats. 

• Attitudinal Barriers: e.g., assumptions or stereotypes about abilities. 

• Technological Barriers: e.g., websites or systems not compatible with assistive 
technology. 

• Systemic Barriers: e.g., policies or procedures that unintentionally create 
obstacles. 

 

General Requirements 

Accessibility Plans and Policies 

This Multi-Year Accessibility Plan will be reviewed and updated at least once every five 
years, with annual progress reports made available to the public. 

Accessibility will continue to be incorporated into all strategic and operational planning, 
including asset management, facility upgrades, and service delivery. All accessibility-
related policies will be available in accessible formats upon request. 

 

Training 

The Municipality will ensure that all employees, volunteers, Council members, and 
policy developers receive training on: 

• The AODA and the Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (IASR); and 

• The Ontario Human Rights Code as it pertains to people with disabilities. 

Training records will be maintained, and refresher training will be provided as needed to 
reflect legislative or procedural changes. 

 

Customer Service Standards 

The Municipality is committed to providing equitable, respectful, and accessible 
customer service to all residents and visitors. 

Actions Taken: 



 

HCM MULTI-YEAR ACCESSIBILITY PLAN  PAGE 4 OF 7 
 

• Staff trained in Accessible Customer Service. 

• Accommodations provided upon request. 

• Accessible municipal elections conducted with post-election reports. 

Actions Planned: 

• Continue to solicit and act on public feedback, including from persons with 
disabilities. 

• Maintain and expand accessibility accommodations as needs evolve. 

• Review customer service policies and practices periodically. 

• Strengthen the formal feedback process for accessibility concerns. 

 

Information and Communication Standards 

The Municipality will ensure that information and communications are clear, accessible, 
and available in multiple formats when requested. 

Actions Taken: 

• Publicized availability of accessible document formats and communication 
supports. 

Actions Planned: 

• Develop procedures to provide alternative formats promptly upon request. 

• Train staff in accessible document creation and digital accessibility. 

• Maintain compliance with WCAG 2.0 Level AA standards for web content. 

• Provide emergency and safety information in accessible formats. 

 

Employment Standards 

The Municipality is committed to accessible and inclusive employment practices, 
ensuring fair and equitable treatment throughout recruitment, employment, and 
accommodation processes. 

Actions Taken: 

• Implemented accommodation procedures for employees with disabilities. 

• Job postings include accommodation statements. 



 

HCM MULTI-YEAR ACCESSIBILITY PLAN  PAGE 5 OF 7 
 

Actions Planned: 

• Review accommodation and return-to-work policies regularly. 

• Maintain accessible hiring and interview processes. 

• Review and update emergency and accommodation plans annually. 

 

Design of Public Spaces Standards 

The Municipality is committed to ensuring that all newly constructed or significantly 
renovated public spaces—including parks, trails, parking areas, and recreational 
facilities—are designed and maintained to meet or exceed accessibility standards. 

Actions Taken: 

• Upgrades to the Municipal Office and Community Hall are underway, featuring: 

o A fully accessible universal washroom with multiple accessibility supports 
and safety features; 

o Fob-activated, sensor-operated automatic doors that allow individuals 
using mobility aids to enter and exit independently; 

o Improved ramps and entryways; 

o Enhanced LED lighting for visibility and safety. 

Actions Planned: 

• Continue to integrate accessibility into all infrastructure and facility projects. 

• Regularly review design standards and provincial guidelines for compliance. 

• Identify funding opportunities to support additional accessibility upgrades across 
public spaces and parkland. 

Transportation Standards 

The Municipality does not operate public transportation services. However, the 
Municipality will continue to apply accessibility principles to any municipal vehicles or 
publicly funded transportation initiatives that may arise in the future. 

 

  



 

HCM MULTI-YEAR ACCESSIBILITY PLAN  PAGE 6 OF 7 
 

Maintenance of Accessible Elements 

In accordance with Section 80.44 of the IASR, the Municipality has procedures for the 
inspection, repair, and maintenance of accessible elements in public spaces and 
municipal facilities. 

Preventative Maintenance 

• Scheduled quarterly inspections. 

• Documentation and tracking for all accessibility features. 

• Proactive replacement of worn or damaged components. 

Emergency Maintenance 

• Response within 24 hours for reported issues. 

• Prioritize repairs impacting access or safety. 

• Maintain a list of qualified contractors for rapid response. 

• Communicate updates to affected individuals and staff. 

Temporary Disruptions 

• Provide advance notice through the website, signage, and direct communication. 

• Include details about duration, reason, and available alternatives. 

• Provide interim accommodations where possible. 

• Log and review all disruptions for improvement. 

 

Feedback and Contact Information 

The Municipality welcomes feedback on accessibility policies, programs, and services to 
help identify and address barriers. Feedback will be acknowledged and reviewed 
promptly. 

Contact: 
Administration, Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah 
�� 705-859-3293 
������� adminassistant@tehkummah.ca  

Alternate formats of this Plan and all related documents are available upon request. 

 

mailto:adminassistant@tehkummah.ca


 

HCM MULTI-YEAR ACCESSIBILITY PLAN  PAGE 7 OF 7 
 

Looking Ahead (2026–2031 Priorities) 

The Municipality is committed to continuous improvement in accessibility over the next 
several years. Key priorities include: 

1. Completion of Community Park (Behind Municipal Office) Upgrades (2026) 

o Remove aging or unsafe play structures. 
o Develop the park as a passive, walking-friendly space. 
o Install accessible pathways for safe and independent use by all visitors. 
o Add features such as accessible seating, resting areas, and landscaping to 

enhance enjoyment and comfort. 
 

2. Digital and Communication Accessibility Enhancements 

o Upgrade municipal website, online services, and documents to maintain WCAG 
2.0 Level AA compliance. 

o Provide accessible formats of all municipal communications upon request. 
 

3. Policy and Program Integration 

o Embed accessibility considerations into all municipal planning, budgeting, and 
decision-making processes. 

o Regularly review policies to remove systemic barriers and ensure inclusion in 
service delivery. 
 

4. Community Engagement and Feedback 

o Establish ongoing channels for residents to provide input on accessibility needs. 
o Use feedback to guide improvements in municipal facilities, programs, and 

services. 
 

5. Training and Awareness 

o Continue training for employees, Council members, and volunteers on AODA 
requirements, Human Rights obligations, and accessibility best practices. 

 

Through these actions, the Municipality will ensure that all facilities, parks, services, and 
programs are accessible and inclusive, reinforcing the Municipality’s commitment to 
being a community where everyone can participate fully and independently. 

 



 

 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF TEHKUMMAH 

 

 
BYLAW NUMBER 2025-19 

 
BEING A BYLAW TO CONFIRM THE PROCEEDINGS OF COUNCIL 

 

 

Legal Authority 

Scope of Powers 
Section 8(1) of the Municipal Act¸ 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, (“Municipal Act”) as amended, 
provides that the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly so as to confer broad 
authority on municipalities to enable them to govern their affairs as they consider 
appropriate, and to enhance their ability to respond to municipal issues. 

 
Powers of a Natural Person 
Section 9 of the Municipal Act provides that a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers 
and privileges of a natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or 
any other Act. 

 
Powers Exercised by Council 
Section 5 (1) of the Municipal Act provides that the powers of a municipality shall be 
exercised by its Council 

Powers Exercised by By-law 
Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act provides that a municipal power, including a municipality’s 
capacity, rights, powers and privileges under section 9, shall be exercised by bylaw unless 
the municipality is specifically authorized to do otherwise. 

 
Preamble 
Council for the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah (“Council”) acknowledges 
that many of the decisions it makes during a meeting of Council, regular, special, or 
otherwise, are done by resolution. Section 5 (3) of the Municipal Act requires that 
Council exercise their powers by Bylaw. 

Council further acknowledges that the passing of resolutions are more expedient than 
adopting Bylaws for each decision. 

Decision 
Council of the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah decides it in the best 
interest of the Corporation to confirm its decisions by way of Confirmatory Bylaw. 



Direction 
 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Tehkummah 
directs as follows: 

1. The Confirmatory Period of this By-Law shall be for the Special Council Meeting of 
January 13, 2026. 

2. All By-Laws passed by the Council of the Corporation of the Township of 
Tehkummah during the period mentioned in Section 1 are hereby ratified and 
confirmed. 

 
3. All resolutions passed by the Council of the Corporation of the Township of 

Tehkummah during the period mentioned in Section 1 are hereby ratified and 
confirmed. 

 
4. All other proceedings, decisions, and directives of the Council of the Corporation of 

the Township of Tehkummah during the period mentioned in Section 1 are 
hereby ratified and confirmed. 

5. This Bylaw takes effect on the day of its final passing. 
 

 
Read and adopted by Resolution 2026-008 this 13th day of January 2026. 

 

 
 

___________________________  ___________________________ 
Mayor      Clerk 

 


	Agenda January 13, 2026 (Tehkummah).pdf
	Binder4.pdf
	Special Meeting Minutes Nov 13 2025 Tehkummah.pdf
	Special Meeting Minutes Nov 20 2025 Tehkummah (002).pdf
	Chief's Report December 2025.pdf
	Draft Tehkummah Multi-Year Accessibility Plan.pdf
	Blue and White Simple Modern Project Proposal Cover A4 Document (1)
	Draft Tehkummah Multi-Year Accessibility Plan.pdf
	Tehkummah Multi-Year Accessibility Plan Draft (2026-2031).pdf


	Bylaw 2026-01- Confirmation of Proceedings January 13, 2026 (Tehkummah).pdf
	Legal Authority Scope of Powers
	Powers of a Natural Person
	Powers Exercised by Council
	Powers Exercised by By-law
	Preamble
	Decision
	Direction



